
 

 

            

 

Planning Sub Committee 

 
TUESDAY, 10TH MARCH, 2015 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Ahmet (Chair), Akwasi-Ayisi, Basu, Beacham, Bevan, Carroll, 

Carter, Gunes, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Patterson and Rice 
 

 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council’s internet site.  At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm 
if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed.  The Council may use the 
images and sound recording for internal training purposes. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However, by 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and 
sound recordings for web-casting and/or training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee 
Clerk at the meeting. 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be dealt 
with at item 7 below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note that whilst these pre-
application briefing meetings are 
open to members of the public, 
there are no public speaking 
rights. 



 

2 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 

4. PRE-APPLICATION BRIEFINGS  
 This meeting is scheduled to consider pre-application presentations to the Planning 

Sub-Committee and discussion of proposals. 
 
Notwithstanding that this is a formal meeting of the Sub-Committee, no decisions will 
be taken at this meeting and any subsequent applications will be the subject of a 
report to a future meeting of the Sub-Committee in accordance with standard 
procedures. 
 
The provisions of the Localism Act 2011 specifically provide that a councillor should 
not be regarded as having a closed mind simply because they previously did or said 
something that, directly or indirectly, indicated what view they might take in relation to 
any particular matter. Pre-application briefings provide the opportunity for Members to 
raise queries and identify any concerns about proposals. 
 
The Members’ Code of Conduct and the Planning Protocol 2014 continue to apply for 
pre-application meeting proposals even though Members will not be exercising the 
statutory function of determining an application. Members should nevertheless ensure 
that they are not seen to pre-determine or close their mind to any such proposal 
otherwise they will be precluded from participating in determining the application or 
leave any decision in which they have subsequently participated open to challenge. 
 

5. APEX HOUSE, SEVEN SISTERS ROAD, LONDON, N15 5PQ  (PAGES 1 - 8)  
 
6. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 

 
7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 Planning Committee 16 March.  

 
 
 



 

3 

Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Maria Fletcher 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 0208 4891512 
Email: maria.fletcher@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Monday, 02 March 2015 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Pre-application briefing to Planning- Sub Committee  

 

1. DETAILS OF THE DEVELOPMENT 

 

Ref: PPA/2015/0002 

Site Address: Apex House, Seven Sisters Road, London, N15 5PQ 

Ward: Seven Sisters 

 

Description of Development: 

 

Redevelopment comprising the demolition of existing former Council office and erection of new 

buildings up to 21 storeys in height  providing 152 residential units and 1,182 sqm of retail floor space. 

 

Applicant: Grainger PLC 

Agent: DP9  

Ownership: Private/Council (See background below) 

Case Officer: Neil McClellan 

 

2. BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 Apex House is a Council office block on the junction of Seven Sisters Road with Tottenham High 

Road. It currently houses the South Tottenham Customer Service Centre.  In July 2014 Cabinet 

approved the selling of Apex House to Grainger plc. The intention is to move the Customer 

Service Centre to Tottenham Green and a report on this will be presented to cabinet in due 

course. The agreement to sell the site is subject to Grainger plc obtaining planning for the 

redevelopment of the site. 

 

2.2 The option to retain Apex House as a Council building was considered as part of the Strategic 

Property Review. The conclusion was that the building is no longer fit for purpose and is not 

needed for service delivery. The Customer Service Centre is better located in Tottenham Green 

improvements currently underway there. 

 

2.3 Grainger plc also owns part of the Wards Corner site opposite Apex House on the other side of 

the Seven Sisters Road. This site has planning permission granted in 2012 for a major 

redevelopment with new retail space and 196 new homes. The redevelopment of Apex House 

and Wards Corner, in the heart of Seven Sisters in Tottenham, is a key opportunity for 

these sites can make a major contribution to uplifting the area. With land still to be acquired, it is 

unlikely that construction at Wards Corner will be able to start before 2017. Apex House, on the 

other hand, could be redeveloped much sooner (subject to planning permission). 

 

2.4 The Apex House and Ward Corner sites are both identified as Housing Zone Priority Sites which 

between them could deliver over 290 new homes plus new retail space meeting the needs of 

both the existing market stallholders and new site for the existing Wards Corner market. Cabinet 

has agreed to support the Compulsory Purchase of the remaining land required to implement 

the Wards Corner development.  

 

3. SITE AND SURROUNDS 

 

3.1 Apex House is a 3-storey Council office building built in the late 1980s occupying a prominent 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



0.39 hectare site at the junction of Seven Sisters Road and Tottenham High Road, adjacent to the 

Seven Sisters underground and mainline station. The site includes the public toilets and clock 

tower located in front of the building. 

 

3.2  Seacole Court a three storey block of flats managed by ***Housing Association adjoins the site 

fronting the High Road. The Stonebridge Road Estate is located to the rear.     

 

3.3 Part of the site (the pavement along the High Road and the area in front of the existing building 

including the clock tower) are within the Seven Sisters/Page Green Conservation Area, which 

forms part of the Tottenham High Road Historic Corridor of six connected Conservation Areas. 

 

4. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

 

4.1 Redevelopment comprising the demolition of existing former Council office and erection of new 

buildings up to 21 storeys in height  providing 152 residential units and 1,182 sqm of 

commercial/community use floor space. 

 

5. PLANNING HISTORY 

 

5.1 No significant planning history since the Council offices and clock tower were erected in the late 

1980s. 

 

6. CONSULTATION 

 

6.1  Design Review Panel 

 

6.2 The current proposal will be presented to DRP on Thursday 26 February 2014. Their comments 

will reported to the committee in the form of an addendum. 

 

6.3  The proposal will be presented to a Development Management Forum prior to submission. 

 

7. MATERIAL PLANNING CONISDERATIONS 

 

7.1 The main planning issues raised by the proposed development, with internal officer comment 

thereon, are: 

 

1. Principle of the development  The site is located within the Severn Sisters Area of change 

as set out in an Strategic Policies.  

Managing Growth, SP2: Housing) seek to maximise the supply of additional housing to meet 

and exceed 8,200 homes from 2011-2021 (820 per annum).  The majority of these new 

homes will be accommod

House site as a strong district landmark building and gateway to Seven Sisters. 

 

Apex House & Seacole Court have a site allocation (SS2) in the 

the Tottenham Area Action Plan now out to consultation in February. The key objectives of 

this allocation are a residential led mixed use comprehensive development whose design 

will provide a tall landmark building marking the strategic Seven Sisters transport 

interchange along with public realm improvements. 

 

Page 2



incorprating a tall landmark building is considered broadly acceptable.   

 

2. Design and appearance  As has already been stated the site has been identified as being a 

buidings, policy DM5 of the Haringey Development Management Policies (Preffered 

Options) Document, the proposed building will have to be of the highest quality. Further 

comments will be tabled at the pre-application Committee from the DRP following the 

scheme having been presented to them on 13 November 2014. Further, The Applicants are 

also carrying out their own consultation exercise with the local community before the pre-

application committee meeting. 

 

Not including Seacole Court within the development in line with the aspirations of the draft 

Tottenham AAP considerably weakens the scheme. It misses out an opportunity to 

significantly strengthen the High Road frontage. It also raises urban design concerns about 

the relationship, in terms of massing and scale, between the retained Seacole Court and the 

scheme as currently proposed. 

 

3. Public Realm - The proposed 15m wide pavement on the High Road side would complement 

the generous pavement width outside of the Wards Corner development that continues 

towards Tottenham Green. A wide boulevard in this area would help to project the potential 

community/retail uses in Apex House onto the street and make it more of a distinctive 

place. This in turn would give the Wards Corner/Apex House area corner a more open, 

community/pedestrian fee.  Better pedestrian connections over Seven Sisters Road would 

be desirable, however this requires dialogue with TfL and may be difficult to achieve. This 

approach would complement the AAP objective for the area which is to deliver streetscape 

and environmental improvements including an enhanced urban realm. 

 

More thought is required on how to make the most of the public realm around the site.  

 

4.  Affordable housing  The scheme proposes 152 residential units of which 38% would be 

affordable (by habitable room).  

 

In line with London Plan Policies 3.9, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12 and 3.13, Local Plan Policy SP2 aims to 

provide affordable housing. 

 

Subject to viability, sites capable of delivering ten or more units will be required to meet a 

borough wide affordable housing target of 50%, based on habitable rooms. 

 

There are currently high levels of social rented housing in the Tottenham constituency 

promotes higher proportions of market sale homes and intermediate housing in this part of 

the borough. The Council will seek 60% intermediate and 40% social/affordable rent 

housing.   

 

The preferred affordable housing mix, in terms of unit size and type of dwellings on 

individual schemes will be determined through negotiation, scheme viability assessments 

recommended mix for affordable housing on this scheme is 17% 1beds, 42% 2beds 

and 

recommendation at 20% 1beds, 44% 2beds and 36% 3beds. 

 

Page 3



The Council is consulting upon a revision to Strategic Policy SP2. This will seek views on the 

reduction in the borough wide affordable housing target to 40%. Nevertheless, the adopted 

development plan policy contains a 50% target. Viability appraisals will therefore be 

required for affordable housing levels less than this policy target. Given the pending 

consultation on tenure split within the Tottenham Area Action Plan, further discussion on 

Enabling Officer is that 30% intermediate and 20% affordable rent would be acceptable to 

balance the mix of tenures in the area. 

 

5. Private rented sector (PRS) housing - The Council is keen to explore with the developer and 

the GLA the potential for including a significant proportion of PRS housing in this scheme. 

 

6. Density  The proposed 32 units over the entire site of 0.2 hectares would equate to 160 

units per hectare and 535 habitable rooms per hectare at an average of 3.34 habitable 

rooms per unit. For a site with a PTAL of 3, in an Urban environment, the density would be 

higher than what is reflected in the guidelines under the London Plan Density Matrix. That 

being between 200-450 habitable rooms per hectare and between 55-145 units per hectare 

with the average habitable room per unit being between 3.1-3.7. 

 

7. Impact on residential amenity  Any design proposal should consider the impact on the 

amenity of the surrounding properties.  Any detailed submission should include an 

annotated site plan showing the distance between the proposal and dwellings on the 

neighbouring sites.  A shadowing report would be expected with the submission of a 

planning application taking into account the proposed units and any sensitive surrounding 

uses. 

 

There is particular concern about the relationship between Seacole Court and the proposed 

building. Habitable room windows are located in the flank elevation of Seacole Court and 

there are concerns about the impact of the scheme on light and outlook to these windows, 

as well as the impact of wrapping a building round the back of Seacole Court and the impact 

this has on the small external amenity spaces and balconies located to the rear.  

 

8. Impact on the conservation area  Part of the site (the pavement along the High Road and 

the area in front of the existing building including the clock tower) are within the Seven 

Sisters/Page Green Conservation Area, which forms part of the Tottenham High Road 

Historic Corridor of six connected Conservation Areas. The Council has a duty under s72 of 

the Act to consider the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance 

of the conservation area. In working up more detailed proposals for the site the applicant 

will need to demonstrate that the scheme responds appropriately to the local and historic 

environment.  

 

9. Quality of accommodation  All accommodation must accord with Haringey and London 

Plan standards. Currently, there are no floor plans of the proposed units and therefore this 

aspect cannot be formally commented on. 

 

10. Parking and highway safety  Located on the junction of Severn Sisters Road with the 

Tottenham High Road both of which are 

network. Close proximity to Seven Sisters National Rail and London Underground Victoria 

line station.  

 

Site has a high Public Transport Accessibility Level ("PTAL") rating of 6a. 

Page 4



The following Saved UDP and Local Plan Policies are relevant:  

 

1) Saved UDP Policy M9 Car free developments  

2) Saved UDP Policy M10 Parking requirements for New Developments 

3) Local Plan Strategic Police SP1 (Managing Growth), SP4 (working Towards a Low   

carbon) and SP7 transport. 

 

Given its high PTAL rating the Council will support a fully car free scheme for this site. The 

provision of disabled parking and car-club spaces will need to be explored. The Council 

appreciates that given the sites constraints it may not be practicable to provide these within 

the development. The parking provision required will ultimately need to be balanced against 

the aspiration to provide a high quality design and public realm and this will need to be 

discussed in detail at further meetings.  

 

Servicing arrangements for the commercial and residential elements of the scheme requires 

more thought. All servicing is likely to be from Stonebridge Road and its impact on road 

conditions and local amenity need to be understood and mitigated.  

 

The proposed development will have to be supported by a transport assessment (TA); the 

applicant is required to conduct a joint TA scoping meeting with TfL and Haringey 

Transportation and Highways. It is highly recommended that before any surveys are 

conducted the applicant arrange the scoping meeting with the Transportation Officer.   

 

11. Accessibility  All units would comply with Lifetime Homes standards and 10% of the 

number of residential units would be wheelchair accessible. 

 

12. Sustainability - The applicant will be required to submit a sustainable design and 

construction statement to confirm that the proposed dwellings will meet Level 4 and any 

other sustainability measures which are incorporated into the proposal.  All new non-

residential development shall be buil

 

 

The scheme must meet the carbon reduction target and energy hierarchy set out in London 

Plan Policy 5.2. 

 

The site has been identified as being in an area with potential for being part of a 

decentralised energy network. This may be as a decentralised energy hub, as a customer, or 

requiring part of the site to provide an easement for the network. 

 

The applicant is advised to begin exploring the feasibility of all potential sustainability 

measures and documenting any measures which are ruled out and the reasons as this will 

be expected as part of any application submission.  

 

13. Trees/Landscaping  There are existing trees located in front of the site which should be 

preserved. Opportunities for additional tree planting and enhancements to biodiversity such 

as green roofs should be considered. 

 

14. Other Matters  The Council may wish to explore with the applicant the potential for re-

providing the public toilets and clock tower currently located on the site. 

 

Page 5



Site Location Plan 

 

 

Photograph of Apex House 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



Indicative Ground and Typical Upper Floor Plans 

 

 

 

View of Proposal from High Road to the North 

 

 

Page 7



 

View of Proposal from High Road to the South 

 

 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	5 Apex House, Seven Sisters Road, London, N15 5PQ

